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Harwich Haven is a major trade gateway, 

which has been fuelling the UK’s economy 

since 1863. With five ports facilities 
operating in the Haven area, our marine 

services operate 24 hours a day, 365 days 

of the year.

Harwich Haven Authority
About us
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Structure and governance

harwich haven Authority is a trust port, which 

is	a	statutory	body	governed	by	legislation	and	
managed	by	an	independent	Board.

Our	trust	port	status	means	we	do	not	have	
shareholders,	do	not	receive	public	funding	and	
operating	surpluses	are	reinvested	back	into	the	
organisation	for	the	benefit	of	our	stakeholders.	
Our	stakeholders	include:	employees,	customers,	
local	residents,	businesses,	local	and	regional	
community	groups,	and	local	and	national	
Government	agencies.	

Our	jurisdiction	covers	the	River	Stour,	the	lower	
part	of	the	River	Orwell,	Harwich	Harbour	and	a	12	
nautical	mile	stretch	of	sea	leading	into	the	Haven.

Vision

We aim to be an exemplary 

trust port offering world 
class services, working with 
all stakeholders for  
a flourishing Haven.

Strategic objectives

01 To sustain leading standards for safety of navigation.

02 To deliver long term financial sustainability.

03 To work in partnership with others to protect and 

improve the environment within the Haven.

04 To be proactively engaged and work in partnership 

with all stakeholders.

05 To maintain a continuous focus on improving 

customer service.

06 To proactively develop our world class capability to 

handle future vessel and port developments.

07 To develop and maintain a high-performing team.

08 To engage with, and lead where appropriate, 

development projects in the Haven.

09 To explore commercial opportunities in partnership 

with others in the Haven.

10 To raise the Authority’s profile, communicating more 
effectively with our stakeholders.

11 To invest in our assets to support our strategic goals.
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Statement by the Chair

As a nationally significant trust port Harwich Haven Authority plays 
a substantial role in supporting the national and regional economy. 
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I	am	pleased	to	report	that	the	Authority	delivered	
another	very	successful	year	in	2017.	We	have	
remained	ahead	of	the	curve	in	ensuring	that	the	
ever-growing	number	of	mega-vessels	are	able	
to	deliver	their	essential	cargoes	to	the	Port	of	
Felixstowe	safely	and	on	time.	

The	make-up	of	vessels	calling	at	the	Haven	Ports	
has	changed	dramatically	over	the	last	three	years	
–	the	same	amount	of	cargo	is	passing	through	
the	port	facilities,	but	it’s	carried	on	fewer,	much	
larger	vessels.	This	places	extra	demands	on	our	
services.	From	the	pilots	who	manoeuvre	the	huge	
vessels,	Vessel	Traffic	Services	who	manage	traffic	
in	the	Harbour	and	approaches	-	and	our	teams	who	
support	front	line	service.

Focusing	on	the	Authority’s	overarching	objective	
to	conserve,	protect	and	improve	the	Haven	for	the	
benefit	of	all	stakeholders	we	made	good	progress	
implementing	our	five	year	capital	investment	
programme	during	2017.	We	successfully	
completed	a	large	scale	technology	upgrade	of	our	
Vessel	Traffic	Services	systems	and	finished	a	two	
year	refurbishment	programme	started	in	2016	to	
future-proof	the	town’s	iconic	Ha’penny	Pier.

During	2017	we	maintained	our	already	excellent	
navigational	safety	record	and	continued	to	invest	
in	the	environmental	stewardship	of	the	Haven.

A	key	activity	during	2017	was	to	conduct	a	survey	
to	seek	the	views	of	stakeholders	in	regard	to	
our	trust	port	status.	It	remains	our	view	that	the	
current	model	best	suits	the	needs	of	stakeholders	
in	the	Haven,	but	not	wishing	to	be	complacent	the	
Authority	commissioned	a	survey.	Overwhelmingly,	
the	responses	we	received	from	the	survey	
supported	the	trust	port	model	for	the	Haven	
Ports.	A	more	detailed	report	of	the	Stakeholder	
Consultation	survey	can	be	found	on	page	32.

Engaging	more	closely	with	stakeholders	within	
the	Haven	remains	a	priority.	During	2017	we	

supported	various	community	initiatives	and	
contributed	to	liaison	groups	focused	on	tourism	
and	coastal	town	infrastructure.

The	two	estuaries	of	the	Stour	and	Orwell	support	
a	significant	leisure	vessel	community,	which	in	turn	
contributes	considerably	to	the	local	economy.	One	
of	the	ongoing	responsibilities	of	the	Authority	is	to	
ensure	that	leisure	vessel	owners	are	able	to	safely	
enjoy	these	busy	waters	alongside	large	numbers	
of	the	biggest	commercial	vessels	afloat.	We	take	
this	responsibility	very	seriously	and	invest	serious	
time	and	effort	to	keep	all	users	of	the	Haven	safe.	
This	is	not	the	only	group	of	stakeholders	that	we	
engage	with,	and	we	have	put	together	a	snapshot	
of	how	we	interacted	with	local	groups	during	the	
year,	which	can	be	found	on	page	34.

Looking	forward…	the	Board	will	continue	to	work	
closely	with	the	Executive	team	to	ensure	business	
planning	is	robust,	achievable	and	supports	our	long	
term	business	development	targets.	

Finally,	on	behalf	of	my	fellow	Board	members,	
I	would	like	to	praise	the	management	and	
employees	of	Harwich	Haven	Authority	for	their	
continued	hard	work	and	dedication	to	maintaining	
and	improving	the	Haven.	Every	colleague	has	
contributed	to	our	vision	during	2017	-	to	be	an	
exemplary	trust	port	offering	world	class	services,	
working	with	all	stakeholders	for	a	flourishing	
Haven	–	and	I	extend	my	sincere	appreciation	for	
their	efforts.

J Keohane

Chair
25 May 2018
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Safety of Navigation

The	Authority	once	again	received	confirmation	
from	an	independent	auditor	of	our	compliance	
with	the	Port	Marine	Safety	Code.	The	Authority	
submitted	confirmation	of	compliance	with	the	
code	to	the	Maritime	and	Coastguard	Agency.

The	independent	audit	looks	at	all	aspects	of	our	
marine	operations.	It	provides	the	assurance	that	
our	operational	procedures	evolve	to	embrace	the	
development	in	the	type	and	numbers	of	vessels	
visiting	the	Haven.	More	importantly,	it	provides	
assurance	that	all	stakeholders	-	from	the	largest	
to	the	smallest	-	can	continue	to	navigate	safely.	

As	increasing	numbers	of	the	world’s	largest	
container	vessels	continue	to	call	at	the	Haven,	
we	have	reviewed	our	procedures	to	adjust	to	
the	requirements	of	these	mega	vessels.	We	
involve	other	relevant	stakeholders	such	as	the	
towage	provider	and	the	Port	of	Felixstowe	
in	the	simulation	studies	that	we	conduct	at	
HR	Wallingford	to	develop	procedures.	This	
integrated	approach	to	training	and	development	
ensures	that	all	parties	are	aware	of	all	of	the	
issues	and	are	able	to	contribute	effectively	to	the	
management	of	this	challenging	type	of	vessel.

The	Authority	maintained	its	excellent	record	
of	safety	of	navigation	achieved	in	2016,	with	
no	increase	in	the	number	of	recorded	marine	
incidents	in	2017.	Mechanical	or	equipment	failure	
on	vessels	visiting	the	Haven	represents	the	
highest	cause	of	recorded	incident.

Health and safety

The	health	and	safety	of	all	employees	and	
contractors	working	for	the	Authority	is	a	high	priority.

Hence	it	is	pleasing	to	report	that	during	2017	
the	Authority	achieved	a	50%	reduction	in	
reported	accidents	and	near	misses.	This	has	
been	achieved	by	applying	a	concentrated	focus	
on	areas	of	our	operations	that	previously	
reported	the	highest	number	of	accidents,	
while	continuing	to	encourage	the	reporting	of	
even	the	smallest	of	accidents	or	near	misses	
across	our	operations.	This	approach	included	
external	contractors	employed	on	our	premises.	
The	Authority	will	continue	to	build	on	these	
improvements	through	ongoing	review	of	safety	
awareness	protocols	for	both	employees	and	
external	contractors.

Statement by the Chief Executive

The Authority continued to focus during 2017 on its key objective of 

safety of navigation for vessels visiting Haven Ports, environmental 

stewardship, health and safety and customer service. Ensuring we 

deliver a safe and efficient service remains a priority for staff across our 
vessel traffic services, pilot and launch crew teams.
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Results and finance

The	number	of	vessels	using	Harwich	Ports	during	
2017	totalled	13,752.	This	was	an	increase	on	
2016,	which	saw	owners	shift	towards	operating	
larger	vessels.	Total	tonnage	of	shipping	entering	
the	ports	increased	by	6%	to	just	over	220 million	
gross	tons,	again	as	a	direct	result	of	the	growth	in	
the	number	of	larger	vessels.

Our	two	revenue	sources,	pilotage	and	conservancy	
produced	a	consolidated	revenue	of	£26.6	million	
(2016:	£24.5	million).

The	Authority	produced	a	surplus	before	taxation	
of	£6.9	million	(2016:	£5.9	million).	The	surplus	was	
in	line	with	2016	as	less	expenditure	was	required	
for	planned	maintenance	dredging.	The	Authority	
utilised	operating	surplus	to	service	outstanding	
borrowing,	make	contributions	to	the	pension	
scheme	and	invest	in	essential	capital	projects.	Loans	
repaid	totalled	£2.2	million.

Capital	projects	during	2017	included	the	
refurbishment	of	Ha’penny	Pier,	mooring	pontoons	
and	internally	facing	operational	systems.	

The	financing	of	the	Authority’s	Defined	Benefit	
pension	(HHAPF)	remained	a	significant	commitment	
during	2017.	The	deficit	recovery	agreement,	which	
addresses	past	service	liabilities	required	an	annual	
payment	by	the	Authority	of	£1.11	million	in	2017,	in	
addition	to	the	ongoing	employer	contributions	for	
current	service	of	£0.5	million.	Despite	this	significant	
contribution,	the	HHAPF	remains	significantly	
in	deficit.	The	scheme	is	currently	undergoing	a	
triennial	valuation,	the	results	of	which	will	inform	the	
Authority’s	actions	to	address	this	issue	in	2018.

Stakeholders

During	2017	we	continued	to	build	on	our	
strong	relationships	with	our	commercial	
and	professional	stakeholders	by	developing	
partnerships	with	local	bodies	such	as	district	

and	local	councils,	Haven	Gateway	Partnership,	
leisure	vessel	community,	local	schools	and	
businesses,	and	not	least	the	local	community.	We	
continued	to	support	the	Port	Community	Fund	
in	Suffolk	and	directly	donated	around	£20,	000	
to	community	initiatives	in	and	around	the	Haven.	
We	are	currently	reviewing	how	we	distribute	
charitable	giving	and	are	planning	to	enter	into	
a	formal	agreement	with	both	Essex	and	Suffolk	
Community	Foundations	to	establish	a	regular	
contribution	for	disbursement	to	local	charities.	

The	stakeholder	dividend	financed	by	the	
Authority	in	2017	amounted	to	£16.7	million	and	
included	the	second	stage	of	the	refurbishment	
of	Ha’penny	Pier.	See	page	34	for	further	details	
about	our	stakeholder	engagement.

One	of	our	most	successful	stakeholder	
engagement	initiatives	in	2017	was	the	
development	and	launch	of	our	new	website,	
which	since	it	went	online	in	March	has	seen	a	
500%	increase	in	traffic.	The	website’s	key	features	
include	live	up	to	the	minute	vessel	arrivals	and	
wind	and	tidal	data,	which	is	very	popular	with	local	
and	visiting	leisure	vessel	users.

Each	year	we	print	and	distribute	free	of	charge	
in	excess	of	40,000	tide	table	booklets	and	a	
yachting	guide	aimed	at	increasing	safety	for	
sailors	using	the	Haven.	During	the	summer	
of	2017	we	took	the	opportunity	–	through	
a	consultation	and	in	collaboration	with	
stakeholders	from	the	leisure	community	–	to	
review	and	update	both	publications.	The	new,	
improved	booklets	will	be	distributed	during	the	
first	quarter	of	2018.

Another	successful	initiative	for	2017	was	a	
refreshed	Annual	Public	Meeting.	This	meeting	was	
designed	to	update	stakeholders	on	the	Authority’s	
role	and	its	performance	in	the	previous	year	along	
with	a	look	ahead	for	2017.	It	also	provided	the	
opportunity	for	members	of	the	public	to	raise	any	
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issues	or	questions	they	might	have.	The	event	
proved	very	popular	and	will	be	repeated	in 

July	2018.

In	September	we	hosted	an	industry	seminar	–	
Safe	Marine	Operations	–	in	Harwich.	We	brought	
together	a	host	of	marine	experts	to	discuss	
topical	issues	and	share	best	practice.	Feedback	
received	about	the	event	was	extremely	positive.	
The	seminar	will	now	be	added	to	our	calendar	
of	events	and	staged	bi-annually.	The	event	was	
opened	up	to	external	and	internal	stakeholders	
and	75	people	attended.

Haven Ports trade

The	container	vessel	trades	enjoyed	a	spell	
of	stability	following	a	period	of	mergers	and	
acquisitions	and	alliances	being	formed	by	vessel	
operators.	Some	further	realignment	of	UK	ports	
of	call	by	the	lines	remains	possible.	The	Port	of	
Felixstowe	services	two	of	the	three	major	vessel	
operating	alliances	that	dominate	the	Asia-Europe	
trades,	and	continues	to	handle	around	4	million	
TEU	per	annum.

2017	was	the	year	of	the	mega	vessels	and	during	
a	two	month	period	we	welcomed	not	one	world	
record	holder	-	but	two	into	the	Haven.	Madrid	
Maersk	and	OOCL	Hong	Kong	who	both	held	
the	title	of	largest	container	vessel	in	operation	
during	2017.

This	trend	is	set	to	continue	as	operators	on	the	
East-West	trades	establish	services	dominated	
exclusively	by	400m	LOA	vessels	of	18,000	TEU	
capacity.	As	the	number	of	these	vessels	visiting	
the	Haven	Ports	increases,	the	demands	upon	the	
deep-water	channel	increase	correspondingly.	
The	Authority	is	currently	engaged	with	a	study	
to	gain	insight	into	the	future	number	and	drafts	
of	these	vessels	that	are	likely	to	visit	the	Haven,	

which	will	inform	requirements	for	further	
channel	deepening.	

The	Port	of	Ipswich	continues	to	handle	the	most	
grain	exports	in	the	United	Kingdom	along	with	a	
wide	variety	of	short	sea	trades	including	timber	and	
other	agri-bulks.	Vessel	calls	in	2017	numbered	649.

Harwich	International	Port	maintains	its	important	
unitised	freight	and	Ro-Pax	services	to	the	
Netherlands.	The	freight	service	has	currently	been	
upgraded	with	two	larger	vessels	to	accommodate	
increased	volumes	on	this	service.	The	port	is	also	
hosting	visits	by	an	increasing	number	of	renewable	
energy	support	vessels.

Harwich	Navyard	has	also	upgraded	the	vessel	
servicing	its	unitised	cargo	service	to	the	Baltic	and	
the	Port	of	Mistley	has	held	its	short	sea	mini-bulk	
trade	steady	at	around	65	vessel	calls	in	2017.

Environment

Maintenance	dredging	of	Harwich	Harbour	remained	
one	of	our	largest	items	of	expenditure.	It’s	also	
an	activity	that	presents	the	most	significant	
environmental	impact	and	requires	us	to	continually	
monitor	and	assess	any	impacts	dredging	the	harbour	
may	have	on	the	estuaries	and	foreshore,	which	are	
important	intertidal	feeding	habitats	for	resident	and	
visiting	birds.	We	do	this	by	working	closely	with	local,	
regional	and	national	bodies	to	monitor	the	Haven	
Ports	environment	and	agree	mitigation	to	address	
issues,	such	as	the	beneficial	sediment	placement	
activities	in	both	the	Orwell	and	Stour	estuaries.

The	Authority	has	engaged	with	the	Marine	
Management	Organisation	(MMO)	for	a	number	
of	years	to	seek	to	relocate	the	dredge	disposal	
site	closer	to	the	harbour.	One	of	the	drivers	for	
this	initiative	was	to	reduce	the	CO2	produced	
by	the	dredgers	on	their	transits	to	and	from	the	
disposal	site	–	72%	of	all	of	the	CO2	produced	by	the	
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Authority’s	operations	originates	from	our	dredging	
operations	(during	2017	our	CO2	omission	amounted	
to	9,157	tonnes).	The	MMO	has	given	consent	to	
the	Authority	to	move	the	disposal	site	to	its	new	
location	in	2018	which	will	deliver	a	reduction	of	CO2 
produced	of	14%.

Challenges and Opportunities for 2018

The	challenge	created	by	the	increase	in	numbers	of	
mega	vessels	visiting	the	Haven	and	their	operating	
draft	has	intentionally	dominated	this	report.	Not	just	
because	of	the	immediate	demands	that	manoeuvring	
and	managing	the	transits	of	such	vessels	introduces,	
but	also	for	the	Authority	to	ensure	that	the	
necessary	traffic	management	infrastructure	is	in	
place	to	accommodate	the	vessels.	

Working	with	the	vessel	operators	and	with	the	Port	
of	Felixstowe,	the	Authority	will	test	the	business	
case	for	a	further	channel	deepening	project.	If	it	
is	confirmed	that	such	a	project	should	go	ahead	
to	maintain	the	Haven	Port’s	position	as	the	most	
important	UK	container	hub,	then	detailed	planning	
and	timings	will	follow.

Last	year’s	Annual	Report	and	Accounts	touched	on	
the	issue	of	Brexit.	In	the	absence	of	clearer	details	
from	government,	individual	ports	and	the	industry	
as	a	whole	continue	to	lobby	for	a	post-Brexit	
arrangement	that	will	have	the	least	impact	upon	
trade	through	our	ports.

The	overwhelming	majority	of	the	trade	
entering	and	leaving	the	UK	does	so	through	
its	ports,	and	will	continue	to	do	so	following	
the	UK’s	departure	from	the	EU.	What	is	not	
clear	at	this	time	is	what	arrangements	ports	
will	have	to	work	with	to	ensure	that	this	trade	
keeps	flowing,	specifically	around	customs	
arrangements.	The	ports’	associations	continue	
to	lobby	ministers	to	promote	the	common	

position	of	ports	on	this	issue,	and	to	assist	
and	guide	government	wherever	possible	in	
achieving	the	best	outcome.

Internally,	our	challenge	for	2018	is	to	continue	our	
drive	to	ensure	that	we	are	delivering	the	quality	
of services that our customers require - in the most 

effective	way	that	we	are	able.	This	means	that	we	
must	continue	to	look	closely	at	how	efficiently	
we	operate	our	business	and	make	improvements	
wherever	we	can.

Finally,	I	would	once	again	like	to	add	my	thanks	to	
those	of	the	Chair	in	recognising	the	commitment	
and	professionalism	shown	by	the	whole	team	at	
Harwich	Haven	Authority	throughout	2017.	Our	
services	have	supported	our	customers	and	their	
businesses	to	the	highest	level	and	have	played	a	
critical	role	in	keeping	trade	flowing	though	one	of	
the	UK’s	major	port	hubs.

Everybody	at	the	Authority	should	be	justly	proud	
of	this	achievement.

Neil Glendinning 

Chief Executive
May 2018
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Key financial indicators
Our two sources of revenue, 

pilotage and conservancy 

produced a consolidated 

revenue of £26.6 million in 

2017 (2016: £24.5 million). 
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The	revenue	delivered	a	surplus	before	taxation	of	£6.9	million	(2016:	£5.9	million)	which	was	used	to	
service	outstanding	borrowing,	make	contributions	to	our	pension	deficit	recovery	plan	and	to	invest	in	
maintaining	and	improving	essential	assets.

Financial Highlights (£) 2017 2016 2015
turnover n	 26,580,000	 24,514,000	 24,375,000
Surplus	before	taxation	n 6,849,000 5,909,000 4,249,000

£4.2 million

£5.9 million

£24.5 million

£6.9 million

£26.5 million

Boarding and  
landing fees

charged to operators to whom the Authority  
provides launch services

Pilotage  
fees

charged to vessels that require a pilot to enter and  
leave the Haven

Conservancy  
dues

charged to vessels entering and leaving the Haven to support  
channel maintenance and safe navigation

Pilotage Fees %

Boarding & Landing Fees %

Conservancy Dues %

See	full	Financial	Statements	on	page	45.

£24.4 million

2017

2016

2015
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 Arrivals   2017 2016
	 Vessels	 	 4,819	 4,778
	 Tonnage	 	 212,293,000	 203,503,000

 Navigational safety   2017 2016
	 Vessel	movements	 	 13,752	 13,268
	 Level	1	(major)	navigational	incidents	 	 0	 0
	 Level	2	(minor)	navigational	incidents	 	 4	 4
	 Level	3	(hazardous)	navigational	incidents	 	 25	 31

 Pilotage service   2017 2016
	 Pilotage	acts	 	 5,160	 5,264
	 Tonnage	piloted	 	 278,292,316	 260,007,000
	 Delays	caused	by	pilot	availability	 	 0.39%	 0.78%
	 External	boarding	and	landing	acts	 	 2,705	 2,289

 Dredging   2017 2016
	 Disposed	volume	(m3)	 	 2,678,000	 2,424,089

 Environmental   2017 2016
	 Engine	fuel	use	(litres)	 	 3,283,141 2,805,274
	 Gas	use	(kWh)	 	 394,394	 567,082
	 Electricity	use	(kWh)	 	 355,566 366,638

	 Water	use	(m3)	 	 1,481 1,341

 co2	output	(tonnes)	 	 9,157	 7,907
	 Waste	generated	(kg)	 	 41,574 66,605

 People   2017 2016
	 Employees	 	 106	 110
	 Accidents	 	 6	 12
	 -	Of	which	were	lost	time	accidents	 	 2	 3
	 -	Of	which	were	reportable	 	 0	 2
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Deputy Chair, Non-executive Board member 
Member: Remuneration and Nominations 
Committee, Audit and Risk Committee 

Baroness Scott

Non-executive Board member 
Member: Audit and Risk Committee

Geoff Benn

Chair, Non-executive Board member

Jim Keohane

Non-executive Board member 
Member: Audit and Risk Committee  
(Chair)

Richard Bint

Harwich Haven Authority
Meet the Board

Jim	has	30	years’	experience	in	the	energy	industry	and	worked	
extensively	on	the	privatisation	and	restructuring	of	the	electricity	
industry	in	the	late	1980s.	Jim	was	subsequently	a	director	at	East	
Midlands	Electricity	and	later,	Eastern	Electricity.	From	2001	he	
served	an	eight-year	term	as	a	non-executive	director	at	the	Civil	
Aviation	Authority	(CAA)	and	was	Deputy	Chair	for	the	final	two	
years.	From	2009	until	2017	he	was	a	non-executive	director	at	
Ofgem,	the	gas	and	electricity	regulator.	In	2014	he	also	became	a	
non-executive	director	of	the	Low	Carbon	Contracts	Company	which	
contracts	for	the	energy	from	all	large	scale	renewable	energy	
projects	in	the	UK	on	behalf	of	the	Government.	In	September	2017	
he	was	appointed	as	Chair	of	the	Market	Operator	Services	Limited	
in	the	water	industry.

Geoff	has	spent	all	his	working	life	in	service	businesses.	For	the	
last	30	years	he	has	worked	at	a	senior	level	in	the	health	and	
social	care	system	including	Strategic	Planning,	PMI,	ElderlyCare,	
Acute,	Diagnostic	and	Community	care.	He	is	a	specialist	in	creating	
innovative,	viable,	commercial	solutions	and	has	designed	and	
operated	several	successful	public/private	sector	joint	ventures.	
Now	semi-retired	he	continues	to	speak	at	conferences	on	the	
sustainability	and	development	of	health	care	systems.

Ros	Scott	has	had	many	years	of	experience	in	local	government,	
serving	on	district	and	county	councils	in	Suffolk	between	
1991	and	2005	and	serving	in	organisations	such	as	the	Local	
Government	Association	Transport	Executive	and	the	Audit	
Commission.	She	also	served	as	a	non-executive	director	of	
the	Lloyds	Register.	In	2000	she	was	raised	to	the	peerage	as	
Baroness	Scott	of	Needham	Market.	In	the	House	of	Lords	
she	was	a	Liberal	Democrat	spokesperson	on	Transport	and	
Community	and	Local	Government.

Richard	was	the	Senior	Partner	of	PKF	(UK)	LLP,	the	eighth	
largest	firm	of	accountants	in	the	UK.	He	was	also	a	member	
of	the	Board	of	PKF	International,	the	management	company	
of	the	firm’s	international	network.	He	has	held	a	number	
of	senior	positions	in	the	accountancy	profession	including	
being	a	member	of	the	Council	of	the	Institute	of	Chartered	
Accountants	in	England	and	Wales	(ICAEW)	and	of	the	Auditing	
Practices	Board	of	the	Financial	Reporting	Council.	Richard	
retired	in	March	2015	and	is	currently	a	lay	member	of	the	Court	
(the	governing	body)	of	the	University	of	Dundee,	Vice-Chair	
of	the	Audit	Committee	of	the	ICAEW	and	is	a	Non-Executive	
Board	member	of	Estuary	Housing	Association	which	provides	
social	and	affordable	rented	properties	and	develops	new	such	
properties	across	Essex	and	East	London.

Report of the Board
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Chief Executive, executive Board member 
Member: Safety, Health, Environment  
& Security Committee

Neil Glendinning

Non-executive Board member 
Member: Remuneration and Nominations 
Committee 

Dr Karen Purnell

Non-executive Board member 
Member: Safety, Health, Environment  
& Security Committee

Gareth Llewellyn

Non-executive Board member 
Member: Remuneration and Nominations 
Committee (Chair)

Bob Crighton

Bob	spent	20	years	in	the	Royal	Navy,	serving	at	sea	–	from	
Minehunters	to	Aircraft	Carriers	–	as	well	as	holding	staff	
appointments	ashore,	including	within	the	MOD.	Whilst	in	the	Navy	
he	was	called	to	the	Bar	and	thereafter	worked	for	an	international	
City	law	firm	for	18	years	as	a	marine	lawyer	specialising	in	
collisions,	salvage	and	port-related	work,	representing	owners	and	
underwriters	at	home	and	abroad.	From	2007	to	2015	Bob	worked	
for	the	Port	of	London	Authority	as	Secretary	and	General	Counsel	
responsible	for	all	regulatory	matters	relating	to	navigation	and	
conservancy.	An	Ocean	Yachtmaster,	Bob	is	also	a	former	RYA	
Principal	at	his	local	sailing	club.

Gareth	is	the	Chief	Executive	of	the	Driver	and	Vehicle	Standards	
Agency.	He	had	previously	held	executive	roles	with	Network	
Rail	where	he	was	Executive	Director,	Safety,	Technical	and	
Engineering,	Anglo	American	where	he	was	Global	Head	
of	Safety	and	Sustainable	Development,	and	National	Grid	
where	he	was	Global	Director	for	Safety,	Health,	Environment	
and	Corporate	Responsibility.	He	spent	his	early	career	with	
the	Environment	Agency	and	is	a	qualified	marine	chemist.	
Gareth	has	held	a	number	of	non-executive	director	roles.	He	
floated	Biffa	plc	where	he	chaired	the	Board	SHE	Committee	
and	established	the	DfT’s	Renewable	Fuels	Agency	where	
he	chaired	the	Board	Audit	and	Risk	Committee.	He	has	also	
been	a	non-executive	director	of	the	Rail	Safety	and	Standards	
Board,	National	Grid	Property	and	the	UK	Business	Council	for	
Sustainable	Energy.	Gareth	also	served	a	three	year	term	as	Chair	
of	the	Board	of	trustees	at	the	not-for-profit	CL:AIRE.

Karen	has	extensive	experience	in	the	shipping,	maritime	and	
environmental	sectors,	having	worked	for	ITOPF	Ltd	for	more	than	
20	years.	Prior	to	that	she	worked	for	a	consultancy	specialising	in	
remediation	of	contaminated	land.	During	her	time	with	ITOPF	Ltd	
Karen	has	worked	alongside	a	wide	range	of	stakeholders	from	the	
private	and	public	sectors	worldwide,	providing	technical	support	
and	advice	on	environmental	and	economic	damage	following	
accidental	spills	of	oil	and	chemicals	from	ships.	Karen	also	actively	
maintains	a	diverse	and	extensive	network	of	contacts	and	is	a	
keen	support	of	the	STEM	initiative,	providing	school	children	
with	inspiration	as	to	how	they	can	use	their	scientific	skills	in	the	
maritime	sector.	Karen	is	currently	the	Managing	Director	of	ITOPF	
Ltd,	Chair	of	the	ITOPF’s	Board	of	Pension	Trustees,	a	Fellow	of	the	
Royal	Society	of	Chemistry,	a	member	of	the	Institute	of	Directors	
and	a	Shipwright.

Neil	has	a	comprehensive	operational	experience	of	harbours,	
pilotage	and	the	management	of	the	safety	of	navigation.	
Following	a	seagoing	career,	Neil	served	with	the	Authority	as	
a	senior	pilot	for	the	Haven	Ports	area	before	taking	up	the	
post	of	Deputy	Harbour	Master	(Operations)	in	2009.	He	was	
subsequently	appointed	to	the	position	of	Harbour	Master	
&	Marine	Manager	in	January	2012.	In	May	2014	Neil	was	
appointed	Chief	Executive.
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Keith	Winstanley	has	over	34	years’	maritime	experience,	
predominantly	in	the	Royal	Navy,	where	he	served	in	every	class	
of	warship,	from	minesweeper	to	aircraft	carrier,	and	commanded	
four:	a	minesweeper,	two	destroyers	and	an	amphibious	command	
ship.	He	served	for	over	two	years	as	the	senior	Royal	Navy	officer	
in	the	Middle	East	and,	concurrently,	as	the	Deputy	Coalition	Naval	
Commander,	commanding	a	force	of	115	ships	and	35	aircraft	
operating	in	a	sea	area	of	2.5	million	square	miles.	Keith	has	taught	
and	lectured	worldwide,	on	strategy	and	operational	planning	and	
has	completed	a	research	fellowship	with	Oxford	University	into	
maritime	security	and	globalization	in	the	maritime	sector.	He	was	
made	a	Visiting	Fellow	at	Oxford	on	completion	of	his	fellowship.	
He	is	a	Director	of	two	UK-based	companies	and	a	Non-Executive	
Director	of	a	Social	Enterprise	company	that	finds	employment	for	
men	and	women	leaving	the	UK’s	Armed	Forces.

Mike	attended	Trinity	House	Navigation	School	from	1981	to	1986.	
After	leaving	sixth	form	he	commenced	a	Cadetship	with	Royal	
Fleet	Auxiliary	(RFA)	at	Warsash	College.	He	gained	his	Mates	
Certificate	of	Competency	in	1993	and	after	seven	years’	service	
with	RFA	he	branched	out	into	the	commercial	world	working	for	
a	variety	of	companies,	including	London	Overseas	Freighter,	P&O	
Ferries,	Rockwater	and	Holland	America	Line.	Having	gained	his	
Master’s	Certificate	in	1997	Mike	focused	his	career	on	passenger	
ferries	with	12	years	command	experience	with	both	Stena	Line	
and	P&O.	In	2013	Mike	came	ashore	and	took	up	a	manager	role	
with	Associated	British	Ports	as	Dock	Master	Hull	and	Goole.	Mike	
joined	Harwich	Haven	Authority	in	2015.

Harbour Master, executive Board member

Mike Dunn

Non-executive Board 
Member: Safety, Health, Environment  
& Security Committee (Chair)

Keith Winstanley MBE
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Report of the Board

The Chair is responsible for the leadership and governance of the Board, 

ensuring that it operates effectively, whilst providing appropriate 
challenge to management.

The Board

The	Board conduct	themselves	within,	and	makes	
decisions	based	on,	eight	behavioural	values,	which	
have	been	adapted	from	The	Nolan	Principles.

Board	members	regularly	receive	detailed	financial	
and	operational	information	to	allow	them	to	
monitor	the	key	areas	of	the	business.	The	Board	
also	receives	briefings	from	senior	managers	on	
various	aspects	of	the	Authority’s	activities.

The	Board	is	constituted	of	ten	members,	two	
executive	members	and	eight	part-time	non-
executive	members.	The	Secretary	of	State	for	
Transport	appoints	the	Chair	and	four	non-
executive	members	and	the	Authority	appoints	
three	non-executive	and	two	executive	members.	
from time to time the Authority appoints 

associated	members	who	have	the	right	to	attend	
meetings	but	have	no	right	to	vote	at	them.
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g Benn £12,378

r Bint £15,447

B	Crighton £14,424

J Keohane £33,759

G	Llewellyn £12,378

Dr	K	Purnell £12,378

r Scott £18,516

K	Winstanley	MBE £14,424

totAL £133,706

Non-Executive Member Fees for 2017

Delegation of authority

The	Harwich	Haven	Authority	Board	set	the	
strategic	direction	of	the	business,	which	is	
aligned	to	the	organisation’s	vision.	The	primary	
focus	is	on	quality	of	delivery,	growth,	finances	
and	people.	Working	closely	together,	the	
authority’s	executive	team	are	responsible	for	
delivering	the	strategy	through	robust	and	
cohesive	planning.

The	Board’s	role	is	to	provide	leadership	within	
a	framework	of	prudent	and	effective	controls	
which	enables	risk	to	be	assessed	and	managed.	
The	Board’s	job	is	to	set	the	Authority’s	strategic	
aims,	and	ensure	that	the	necessary	financial	
and	human	resources	are	in	place	to	meet	
those	objectives	and	to	review	management	
performance	in	meeting	them.	

The	Executive	is	responsible	for	the	running	
of	the	business	and	helping	to	ensure	the	
Authority’s	strategic	aims	are	met.	The	Chair	
of	the	Board	is	responsible	for	the	leadership	
and	effectiveness	of	the	Board.	Part	of	the	
Chair’s	role	is	to	set	the	Board	agenda,	allowing	
adequate	time	for	discussion	of	items,	in	
particular	strategic	issues	and	the	promotion	
of	a	culture	of	openness	and	debate	in	board	
discussions	is	also	important.	

The	role	of	a	non-executive	director	(NED)	is	
to	challenge	constructively	and	help	develop	
the	proposals	on	the	organisation’s	strategy.	
They	also	scrutinise	the	performance	of	the	
management	to	ensure	agreed	goals	and	
objectives	are	met,	and	monitor	the	reporting	
of	performance.

Remuneration Policy

Harwich	Haven	Authority	Remuneration	Policy	has	
been	designed	within	a	framework	that	supports	
the	Authority’s	strategic	direction	and	the	long	
term	success	of	the	business.	The	remuneration	
of	non-executive	directors	is	reviewed	regularly	
against	comparative	benchmarked	data	and	
determined	by	the	Remuneration	Committee	and	
ratified	by	the	Board.
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Board meetings and attendances

The	Board	holds	six	formal	meetings	each	year.	In	
addition	to	this,	members	also	attend	a	number	
of	committe	meetings	and	workshops	throughout	
the	year.

Statement of Board responsibility

The	Harwich	Haven	Authority	Board	are	
responsible	for	preparing	the	Strategic	Report,	the	
Report	of	the	Board	and	the	Financial	Statements	
in	accordance	with	applicable	law	and	regulations.

Applicable	law	requires	the	members	to	prepare	
financial	statements	for	each	financial	year.	Under	
that	law	the	members	have	elected	to	prepare	the	
financial	statements	in	accordance	with	applicable	
law	and	United	Kingdom	Accounting	Standards	
(United	Kingdom	Generally	Accepted	Accounting	
Practice),	including	Financial	Reporting	Standard	
102	(FRS	102),	‘The	Financial	Reporting	Standard	
applicable	in	the	UK	and	Republic	of	Ireland’.

Under	applicable	law	the	Board	must	not	approve	
the	financial	statements	unless	they	are	satisfied	
that	they	give	a	true	and	fair	view	of	the	state	of	
affairs	of	the	Authority.

In preparing financial statements,  
the Board is required to:

•	 Select	suitable	accounting	policies	and	apply	
them	consistently.

•	 Make	judgements	and	estimates	that	are	
reasonable	and	prudent.

•	 State	whether	applicable	accounting	standards	
have	been	followed,	subject	to	any	material	
departures	disclosed	and	explained	in	the	
financial	statements.

•	 Prepare	the	financial	statements	on	the	going	
concern	basis	unless	it	is	inappropriate	to	presume	
that	the	Authority	will	continue	in	business.

The	Board	is	responsible	for	keeping	accounting	
records	that	are	sufficient	to	show	and	explain	
the	Authority’s	transactions	and	disclose	with	
reasonable	accuracy	at	any	time	the	financial	
position	of	the	Authority.	This	enables	them	to	
ensure	that	the	financial	statements	comply	with	
the harbours Act 1964 which requires that the 

financial	statements	be	prepared	in	accordance	
with the requirements of the companies Act 

2006.	They	are	also	responsible	for	safeguarding	
the	assets	of	the	Authority	and	hence	for	taking	
reasonable	steps	for	the	prevention	and	detection	
of	fraud	and	other	irregularities.

Disclosure of information to auditors

The	Board	Members	who	were	in	office	at	the	date	
of	approval	of	these	financial	statements	have	
confirmed,	as	far	as	they	are	aware,	that	there	is	
no	relevant	audit	information	of	which	the	auditor	
is	unaware.	The	Board	has	taken	all	steps	that	
ought	to	have	been	taken	as	a	Board	in	order	to	
be	aware	of	any	relevant	audit	information	and	to	
establish	that	the	Authority’s	auditors	are	aware	
of	that	information.

26/1 23/3 25/5 20/7 21/9 23/11

J Keohane • • • • • • 6/6

Baroness r Scott • • • • • • 6/6

g Benn • • • • • • 6/6

r Bint • • • • • • 6/6

B	Crighton • • • • • • 6/6

G	Llewellyn • • - • • • 5/6

Dr	K	Purnell • • • • • • 6/6

K	Winstanley	MBE • • • • • • 6/6

Captain	N	Glendinning • • • • • • 6/6

captain M Dunn • • • • • • 6/6
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Audit and Risk 
Committee 

Three meetings held in 2017

The	Audit	and	Risk	Committee	comprises	
three non-executive Members of the 

Board.	During	2017	the	committee	was	
chaired	by	Mr	R	Bint.	The	Committee	
reviews	the	Annual	Report	and	Accounts	
and	recommends	acceptance	by	the	
Board.	The	Committee	also	reviewed	
the	draft	budget	for	2018	and	was	able	
to	recommend	to	the	Board	that	the	
2018	Capital	and	Revenue	Budgets	were	
accepted.	The	Committee	continues	
to work with the chief executive on an 

updated	risk	register	ensuring	all	risks	are	
adequately	assessed	and	reviewed	on	a	
regular	basis.	The	Chief	Executive	and	the	
Chief	Financial	Officer	are	invited	to	attend	
meetings	of	the	Audit	and	Risk	Committee.

Remuneration 
and Nominations 
Committee
Three meetings held in 2017

the remuneration committee comprises 

three non-executive Members of the 

Board	and	was	chaired	throughout	the	
year	by	Mr	R	Crighton.	The	Committee	
advises	the	Board	on	the	remuneration	
of	the	Chief	Executive	and	reviews	the	
Chief	Executive’s	recommendations	in	
respect	of	the	senior	management	team	
remuneration.	The	Committee	also	makes	
recommendations	to	the	Board	in	respect	
of the remuneration of non-executive 

Board	Members.

Safety, Health, 
Environment &  
Security Committee
Two meetings held in 2017

The	Safety,	Health,	Environment	and	
Security committee comprises two 

Board	Members	and	was	chaired	during	
2017	by	Mr	K	Winstanley.	The	Chief	
executive, harbour Master, Deputy 

Harbour	Master,	Harbour	Engineer	and	
the	Safety	and	Environment	Manager	
attend	by	invitation.	The	main	purpose	of	
the	Committee	is	to	analyse	reports	on	
Occupational	Health,	Safety,	Navigational	
Safety	Performance,	Environmental	
Performance	and	Security	–	in	particular	
Cyber	Security	–	and	make	appropriate	
recommendations	to	the	full	Board.

Board committees
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Corporate governance

The Board continues to be committed 

to the very highest standards of 

governance and endeavours to be 

compliant with both the principles of 

Modernising Trust Ports (second edition) 
and relevant provisions of the UK 

Corporate Governance Code applied on 

a proportionate basis. 
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In	accordance	with	the	updated	guidance	to	
the	PMSC	the	Authority	has	a	safety	Plan	to	
demonstrate	how	the	standard	in	the	PMSC	 
will	be	met:

Harwich	Haven	Authority	is	committed	to	
discharging	all	of	its	statutory	duties	and	
to	remaining	open,	accountable	and	fit	for	
purpose.	Its	plan	to	manage	the	safety	of	
marine	operations	is	to	comply	with	all	of	the	
requirements	of	the	PMSC	and	to	follow	the	
guidance	in	the	Guide	to	Good	practice	on	Port	
Marine	Operations.

•	 Take	care	so	that	all	who	may	choose	to	navigate	
in	the	Haven	may	do	so	without	danger	to	their	
lives	or	property.

•	 Take	such	action	that	is	necessary	or	
desirable	for	the	maintenance,	operation	and	
improvement	or	conservancy	of	the	Haven.

Harwich	Haven	Authority	will	base	its	policies	on	
a	formal	assessment	of	hazards	and	risks	and	it	
will	maintain	a	formal	safety	management	system	
which	will	ensure	that	all	risks	are	managed	so	
that	they	are	as	low	as	reasonably	practicable.	
It	will	employ	and	engage	competent	staff	and	
contractors.	It	has	appointed	a	Designated	Person	
who	will	regularly	conduct	internal	compliance	
audits	in	accordance	with	the	PMSC	and	who	will	
report	directly	to	the	Board.

Additionally,	independent	experts	will	
periodically	conduct	an	external	audit	and	the	
expert’s	report	will	be	presented	to	the	Board.	
The	Designated	Person	and	the	external	auditors	
shall	assess	in	their	reports	the	Authority’s	
performance	against	its	plan	of	complying	with	
all	of	the	requirements	of	the	PMSC	and	to	
following	the	Guidance	in	the	Guide	to	Good	
Practice	on	Port	Marine	Operations.

Compliance

Throughout 2017 the Authority was fully compliant with the Port Marine 

Safety Code (PMSC). Performance is regularly monitored with guidance 

from the “Designated Person” and an annual external audit.
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Risk	management	and	control	is	an	integral	part	
of	corporate	governance.	The	Board	makes	the	
management	of	risk	a	high	priority.	The	effective	
management	of	risk	is	paramount;	the	Audit	and	
Risk	committee	reviews	the	corporate	risk	register	at	
each	meeting	and	the	full	Board	reviews	it	annually.	
Additionally,	all	Board	decision	papers	are	required	
to	assess	any	risks	relating	to	their	recommendations.

The	Authority	additionally	undertakes	detailed	
operational	risk	management	which	focuses	on	
safety	of	navigational	and	health	and	safety.	The	
Authority	uses	a	Safety	Management	System	to	
identify	the	risks,	mitigate	them	where	possible,	
with	monitoring	and	frequent	reassessment.

Going concern

The	Board,	after	review	and	consideration,	can	
confirm	that	the	organisation	has	adequate	
resources	for	a	period	of	at	least	12	months	from	the	
date	of	approval	of	the	financial	statements	and	has	
therefore	assessed	the	business	as	a	going	concern.	

Internal control 

The	Board’s	responsibility	to	monitor	the	adequacy	
of	internal	control	was	met	by	reviewing	the	risk	
register	and	considering	the	adequacy	of	internal	
controls	over	the	principal	risks	and	by	reviewing	
the	work	of	the	auditors	through	their	reports	and	
by	discussion	with	them.	The	Board	is	not	aware	
of	any	significant	deficiencies	in	internal	control	
during	the	year.	The	Audit	and	Risk	Committee	
regularly	reviews	internal	controls	governing	the	
operation	of	the	Authority.

J Keohane

Chair
Approved by the Board in May 2018

01 Exposure	to	increasing	pension	deficit.

02 The	Authority	could	experience	a	major	maritime	incident	within	its	jurisdiction.

03 Cost	implications	of	channel	deepening	required	to	accommodate	increasing	numbers	of	larger	vessels.

Risk and risk management
Harwich Haven Authority’s key risks are:
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Neil Glendinning

Chief Executive Officer

Providing	strategic	leadership	of	all	Authority	operations	
and	an	executive	member	of	the	Harwich	Haven	
Authority	Board	and	Executive	team.

Mike Dunn

Harbour Master

Executive	team	member	responsible	for	marine	services,	
including	engineering,	support,	Vessel	Traffic	Services,	
pilotage	and	launch	services	and	executive	member	of	
the	Harwich	Haven	Authority	Board.	

John Brien

Harbour Engineer

Executive	team	member	responsible	for	overseeing	
and	managing	dredging,	hydrography	and	facilities	
maintenance.

Anthony Fletcher

Business Systems Manager

Executive	team	member	responsible	for	information	
technology,	business	support	systems	and	
communications.	

Jake Storey

Chief Financial Officer

Executive	team	member	responsible	for	all	aspects	of	
the	Authority’s	financial	reporting	operations.

The structure of our Executive team ensures that we have the necessary 

skills and experience to operate a safe and efficient operation. 

Meet the team
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Stakeholder Consultation Survey 2017

We	believe	that	the	trust	port	model	best	suits	the	needs	of	all	of	our	
stakeholders.	However,	we	wanted	to	know	whether	stakeholders	share	our	
views.	The	survey	was	just	one	element	of	our	wider	engagement	strategy	that	is	
focused	on	seeking	the	views	of	and	engaging	with	our	stakeholders.

Overwhelmingly,	the	responses	received	supported	our	views	on	our	current	
operating	model.

In response to – and supporting – the second edition 

of Modernising Trust Ports (MTP), which calls for 

improvements in openness and accountability we 

conducted a survey to seek stakeholders’ views 

about the effectiveness of our trust port status. 
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The	facilities	for	local	
and	visiting	leisure	
vessels	on	Ha’penny 

Pier	are	a	valuable	
service	offered	

by harwich haven 

Authority.

The	Authority’s	new	
website	provides	
comprehensive 

information about 

the	Authority’s	
operations.

The	operational	
information the 

Authority issues 

is	of	good	quality	
and	satisfies	my	
requirements.

i

98%
agreed

100%
agreed

100%
agreed

The	needs	of	
stakeholders	are 

best met by an  

operating	organisation	
that	is	not	driven	by	

profit	and	is	focused	on	
conserving,	protecting	
and	improving	the	

environment of the 

Haven	Ports.

98%
agreed

98%
agreed

the harwich haven 

is an important 

resource	that	should	
be	protected	and	

improved	for	future	
generations	to	enjoy.

100%
agreed

I	believe	that	an	
annual	public	

meeting	provides	
the	Authority’s	

stakeholders	with 

a	voice.

98%
agreed

I	feel	confident	
harwich haven 

Authority prioritises 

the	safety	of	all 
users of the 

Haven	Ports.

98%
agreed

The	Authority’s 

live	data	feeds	are 

a	useful	resource.

95%
agreed

The	yachting	guide	
and	tide	tables	issued	
free	of	charge	by	the	

Authority	provide	useful	
safety information for 

stakeholders	using	the	
local	rivers.

100%
agreed

We asked stakeholders to rate a series of statements:

The full Stakeholder Evaluation survey is 

available to download from our website – 

www.hha.co.uk/stakeholder

The	Authority	provides	
opportunities for 

stakeholders	to	have	
their	say.
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Each year - in support of our trust port status and values - we collaborate, support 

and fund activities and events across our different stakeholder groups. This year the 
Authority was able to fund community grass root initiatives, tourism-focused events 

and activities focused on young people.

February

After review and large scale investment 

the Authority launched its new website. 

Key features include: live up to the minute 

information about vessel arrivals, wind 
and tidal data, an interactive map of the 
Haven and news. Since its launch we have 

seen visitors using the website increase 

by 500%. 

March

We held our first annual public 
meeting, which was attended 70 people 
representing various stakeholder groups.

Stakeholder Engagement 2017
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May

A great time was had by all at our annual 

pensioners’ lunch, which provides the 
perfect opportunity to catch up with 

old colleagues, share memories and 
keep everyone up to date with what’s 

happening at the Authority.

Our donated charts 

and maps were put 

to good use by the 

4th Dovercourt Sea 

Scouts and Triton 

Explorer Unit.

April

June

We were delighted to sponsor - and 

give our employee resource to - the 

Harwich Arts Festival, which attracts 
thousands of visitors to the town 

each year.  

We published our first inclusive 
annual report and accounts, which 
included a comprehensive review 

of our performance throughout 

the year.  

Harwich Haven Authority

Annual report and accounts 2016
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July

1. The Sea Festival and annual Lifeboat Week 

is enjoyed by young and old. Our support is not 

restricted to a financial contribution as we offer 
both employee resource and free berths at our 

Ha’penny Pier mooring facilities.

2. Working closely with our local secondary school 

- The Harwich and Dovercourt High School - we 

welcomed five very enthusiastic pupils who spent 
two weeks gaining valuable work experience. We 

were able to offer them opportunities to spend 
time with teams across the organisation including 

IT and marine support services. 

1a 1bSea Festival images courtesy of Maria Fowler, Harwich
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3. We were delighted to offer the Ellen 
MacArthur’s Cancer Trust’s yacht Moonspray a 

free berth at our moorings as she passed through 

on her round Britain trip.

4. Each year we support the annual Harwich Secret 

Garden initiative. Attracting hundreds of green-

fingered visitors, it’s a not to be missed event. 

3

4

2
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August

Working with our neighbour LV18 we 

were able to support their weekend of 

music, memories and fun. 

Organised in conjunction with 

BBC Essex the Pirate Radio event 

celebrated – and remembered - the 

very last Radio Caroline broadcast 

before it was closed down.

The event attracted thousands of 

visitors who travelled from far and 

wide to attend.  

1. As a local employer we’re very keen to 

support initiatives that enable young people 

to fulfil their potential. We sponsored a 
‘Reading for life initiative’ aimed at the new 

Year 7 intake at our local school to engage 

them to take responsibility for their own 

reading development. 

2. We hosted a one day seminar – Safe 

Marine Operations – in Harwich. Bringing 

together industry experts we welcomed 

80 participants. The seminar will now be a 

permanent bi-annual event. 

1

2a 2b

September
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The Harwich International Sea Shanty 

festival attracts people from across Europe. 

The town comes alive to the sounds of 

shanties and sea songs and this truly special 

event should not be missed.

We are delighted to one of the festival’s 

sponsors and we’ll be supporting the event 

across the weekend of 5-7 October 2018.  

We sponsored and attended Tendring’s 

annual jobs and careers’ fair.

October
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The second phase of our £340,000 two-year programme 
to replace worn timbers and beams on the town iconic 

Ha’penny Pier was completed. The works were conducted 

in the low season to minimise disruption and in time for 

the annual New Year’s Eve Fireworks display, which we 
sponsor each year.

December

Our CEO Neil Glendinning went ‘back to the floor’ as part 
of a management initiative to better understand the roles 

performed by operational teams across the organisation.

Neil joined senior marine fitter Matt Pearson for the 
annual service of our pilot launch St. Cuthbert. 

November

Image courtesy of Maria Fowler, Harwich
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Stakeholder Benefit for the year ended December 2017

Community activity 2017 

Charitable	donations	 £22,000

Website	/	data	 £100,000

Landguard	Partnership	 £4,000

Work	experience	 £8,000

Yachting	guide	&	tide	tables	publications	 £12,000

Public	meeting	 £5,000

Ha’penny	pier	 £213,000 

Activities required for core responsibilities which generate wide stakeholder benefit

Dredging	 £5,245,000

Habitat	creation	-	Trimley	Marshes	 £240,000

Beneficial	sediment	replacement	-	estuaries	 £255,000 

Business community benefit

Business	organisation	subscriptions	 £	34,000

Industry	seminar £5,000

Government benefit

taxation £3,000,000

Apprenticeship	Levy	 £11,000

Business	rates	 £92,000

Employee benefit

Remuneration	package £6,548,000

Social	Club	 £2,000

Employee	engagement	activity	 £5,000

Total  £16,742,000
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Opinion

We	have	audited	the	financial	statements	of	Harwich	Haven	
Authority	for	the	year	ended	31	December	2017	which	comprise	
the	Statement	of	Total	Comprehensive	Income,	the	Statement	
of	Financial	Position,	the	Statement	of	Changes	in	Reserves,	the	
Statement	of	Cash	Flows	and	the	related	notes.	The	financial	
reporting	framework	that	has	been	applied	in	their	preparation	is	
applicable	law	and	United	Kingdom	Accounting	Standards	(United	
Kingdom	Generally	Accepted	Accounting	Practice)	including	
Financial	Reporting	Standard	102	‘The	Financial	Reporting	
Standard	applicable	in	the	UK	and	Republic	of	Ireland’.

In	our	opinion	the	financial	statements:

•	 give	a	true	and	fair	view	of	the	state	of	the	Authority’s	affairs		
	 as	at	31	December	2017	and	of	its	surplus	for	the	year	then	ended;

•	 have	been	properly	prepared	in	accordance	with	United		
	 Kingdom	Generally	Accepted	Accounting	Practice;	and

•	 have	been	prepared	in	accordance	with	the	requirements	of		
	 the	Harbours	Act	1964.

Basis for opinion

We	conducted	our	audit	in	accordance	with	International	
Standards	on	Auditing	(UK)	(ISAs	(UK))	and	applicable	law.	Our	
responsibilities	under	those	standards	are	further	described	
in	the	Auditor’s	responsibilities	for	the	audit	of	the	financial	
statements	section	of	our	report.	We	are	independent	of	the	
Authority	in	accordance	with	the	ethical	requirements	that	
are	relevant	to	our	audit	of	the	financial	statements	in	the	
UK,	including	the	FRC’s	Ethical	Standard,	and	we	have	fulfilled	
our	other	ethical	responsibilities	in	accordance	with	these	
requirements.	We	believe	that	the	audit	evidence	we	have	
obtained	is	sufficient	and	appropriate	to	provide	a	basis	for	
our	opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We	have	nothing	to	report	in	respect	of	the	following	matters	in	
relation	to	which	the	ISAs	(UK)	require	us	to	report	to	you	where:

•	 the	board’s	use	of	the	going	concern	basis	of	accounting	in		
	 the	preparation	of	the	financial	statements	is	not	appropriate;	or

•	 the	board	have	not	disclosed	in	the	financial	statements		
	 any	identified	material	uncertainties	that	may	cast	significant		
	 doubt	about	the	Authority’s	ability	to	continue	to	adopt		
	 the	going	concern	basis	of	accounting	for	a	period	of	at	least		
	 twelve	months	from	the	date	when	the	financial	statements		
	 are	authorised	for	issue.

Other information

The	board	are	responsible	for	the	other	information.	The	other	
information	comprises	the	information	included	in	the	Annual	
Report,	other	than	the	financial	statements	and	our	Auditors’	
report	thereon.	Our	opinion	on	the	financial	statements	does	
not	cover	the	other	information,	and	except	to	the	extent	
otherwise	explicitly	stated	in	our	report,	we	do	not	express	any	
form	of	assurance	conclusion	thereon.

In	connection	with	our	audit	of	the	financial	statements,	our	
responsibility	is	to	read	the	other	information	and,	in	doing	so,	
consider	whether	the	other	information	is	materially	inconsistent	
with	the	financial	statements	or	our	knowledge	obtained	in	
the	audit	or	otherwise	appears	to	be	materially	misstated.	If	
we	identify	such	material	inconsistencies	or	apparent	material	
misstatements,	we	are	required	to	determine	whether	there	is	a	
material	misstatement	in	the	financial	statements	or	a	material	
misstatement	of	the	other	information.	If,	based	on	the	work	we	
performed,	we	conclude	that	there	is	a	material	misstatement	of	
this	other	information,	we	are	required	to	report	that	fact.

We	have	nothing	to	report	in	this	regard.

Independent auditor’s report
to the Board of Harwich Haven Authority
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Respective responsibilities of Board members

As	explained	more	fully	in	the	statement	of	the	Board’s	
responsibilities,	the	Board	is	responsible	for	the	preparation	of	
the	financial	statements	and	for	being	satisfied	that	they	give	
a	true	and	fair	view.	Our	responsibility	is	to	audit	and	express	
an	opinion	on	the	financial	statements	in	accordance	with	
applicable	law	and	International	Standards	on	Auditing	(UK	and	
Ireland).	Those	standards	require	us	to	comply	with	the	Auditing	
Practices	Board’s	Ethical	Standards	for	Auditors.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the 

financial statements

Our	objectives	are	to	obtain	reasonable	assurance	about	
whether	the	financial	statements	as	a	whole	are	free	from	
material	misstatement,	whether	due	to	fraud	or	error,	and	to	
issue	an	Auditors’	Report	that	includes	our	opinion.	Reasonable	
assurance	is	a	high	level	of	assurance,	but	is	not	a	guarantee	
that	an	audit	conducted	in	accordance	with	ISAs	(UK)	will	always	
detect	a	material	misstatement	when	it	exists.	Misstatements	
can	arise	from	fraud	or	error	and	are	considered	material	if,	
individually	or	in	the	aggregate,	they	could	reasonably	be	
expected	to	influence	the	economic	decisions	of	users	taken	on	
the	basis	of	these	financial	statements.

A	further	description	of	our	responsibilities	for	the	audit	of	
the	financial	statements	is	located	on	the	Financial	Reporting	
Council’s	website	at:	www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.	
This	description	forms	part	of	our	Auditors’	Report.

Use of our report

This	report	is	made	solely	to	the	Authority’s	board	members,	
as	a	body,	in	accordance	with	the	Harbours	Act	1964.	Our	audit	
work	has	been	undertaken	so	that	we	might	state	to	the	board	
members	those	matters	we	are	required	to	state	to	them	in	an	

Auditor’s	report	and	for	no	other	purpose.	To	the	fullest	extent	
permitted	by	law,	we	do	not	accept	or	assume	responsibility	to	
anyone	other	than	the	Authority	and	the	board	members	as	a	
body,	for	our	audit	work,	for	this	report,	or	for	the	opinions	we	
have	formed.

Larking Gowen LLP

Chartered	Accountants
Statutory	Auditors
ipswich

25 May 2018
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   Notes   2017     2016 
    £   £    £  £
Operating revenue 3   26,579,778    24,514,145

Expenditure		 4   (18,775,494 )	 	 	 (17,600,059	)

Operating surplus  5   7,804,284    6,914,086

finance income 7   34,859	 	 	 	 37,124

finance costs 8   (577,500 )	 	 	 (871,417	)

Other	finance	costs	 9   (342,000 )	 	 	 (170,000	)

Surplus before taxation     6,919,643	 	 	 	 5,909,793

taxation 10   (70,689 )   -

Surplus for the financial year before 
other comprehensive income    6,848,954	 	 	 	 5,909,793

Other comprehensive income

Actuarial	gain/(loss)	on	pension	scheme	 19 456,000	 	 	 	 (8,967,000	)

Movement	on	deferred	tax	relating	to	pension	scheme	 18 (137,000 )   1,181,000

      319,000	 	 	 	 (7,786,000	)

Total comprehensive gain/(loss) relating to the year    7,167,954 	 	 	 (1,876,207	)

Amounts transferred from the revenue fund to the

following designated funds:

Planned	2018	capital	expenditure	 24 (1,016,882 ) 	 	 	 (2,013,300	)

Additional	contributions	to	the	Pension	Scheme	 24 (1,242,493 )	 	 	 (1,100,000	) 
in	respect	of	the	deficit	funding	

Funds	for	future	capital	dredging	 24 (900,820 ) 	 	 (562,581	)	

Loan repayments 24 (2,354,720 ) 	 	 	 (2,193,724	)

      (5,514,915 )	 	 	 (5,869,605	)

Gain/(loss) relating to the year after transfers to

designated funds    1,653,039 	 	 	 (7,745,812	)

Continuing operations

All	amounts	relate	to	continuing	operations.

Statement of total comprehensive income
Year Ended 31 December 2017
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 Notes 2017   2016
  £   £ 
Fixed assets

Property,	plant	and	equipment	 11 43,293,727 	 44,728,721

Current assets

inventories 12 149,629	 	 175,115

Debtors after more than one year 13 2,109,311	 	 2,317,000

Debtors	due	within	one	year	 13 2,703,865  2,929,349

Short term investments  8,964,945  2,029,253

Cash	at	bank	and	in	hand	 14 4,668,425  4,503,541

  18,596,175  11,954,258

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 15 (4,174,448 ) (2,974,759	)

Net current assets  14,421,727  8,979,499

Total assets less current liabilities  57,715,454	 	 53,708,220

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 16 (2,527,531 )	 (4,882,251	)

Provisions for liabilities and charges 

Pension	scheme	liability 19 (12,821,000 )	 (13,627,000	)

  42,366,923  35,198,969 

Reserves 24 42,366,923  35,198,969 

The	financial	statements	were	approved	and	authorised	for	issue	by	the	Board	and	were	signed	on	its	behalf	by:

J Keohane, Chair  Baroness R Scott, Deputy Chair   

25 May 2018  25 May 2018

The	notes	on	pages	47	to	64	form	part	of	these	financial	statements.

Statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2017

the	reserves	can	be	further	analysed	as	follows:

Designated	 	 7,795,583	 	 6,518,067

revenue   (3,840,136 ) (8,971,844	)

Fixed	assets	and	loans	 	 38,411,476 	 37,652,746

  42,366,923  35,198,969
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The	allocation	of	the	reserves	at	31	December	2017	is	disclosed	in	detail	in	
notes	24	and	25	of	the	financial	statements.

 Reserves
 £
At	1	January	2016	 37,075,176

Surplus	for	the	year	 5,909,793

Other	comprehensive	loss	 (7,786,000	)

At 31 December 2016 35,198,969

Surplus	for	the	year	 6,848,954

Other	comprehensive	gain	 319,000

At 31 December 2017 42,366,923

Statement of changes in reserves
As at 31 December 2017
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  2017   2016
  £   £ 
Cash flows from operating activities

Operating	surplus	 	 7,804,284	  6,914,086

Adjustments	for:	 	

Depreciation	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	 	 2,152,975	 	 2,087,988

impairment of assets  -  -

(Profit)/loss	on	disposal	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	 	 83,201 	 (10,277	)

Decrease/(increase)	in	inventories	 	 25,486 	 (14,679	)

(Increase)/decrease	in	debtors	excluding	deferred	taxation	 	 225,484 	 (482,525	)

Increase/(decrease)	in	creditors	 	 1,038,693 	 240,728

Difference	between	current	service	cost	and	cash	contributions	 	

less	running	costs	of	pension	 	 (692,000	)	 (1,188,000	)

Net cash generated from operating activities  10,638,123 	 7,547,321

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest	received		 	 34,859 	 37,124

Purchases	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	 	 (811,182	)	 (1,080,285	)

Proceeds	from	sale	of	property,	plant	and	equipment		 	 10,000  24,961

Net cash outflows from investing activities  (766,323	)	 (1,018,200	)

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment	of	borrowings	 	 (2,193,724	)	 (5,413,430	)

finance costs   (577,500	) 	 (871,417	)

Net cash from financing activities  (2,771,224	)	 (6,284,847	)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  7,100,576	 	 244,274

Cash	and	cash	equivalents	at	beginning	of	year		 	 6,532,794	  6,288,520

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  13,633,370	 	 					6,532,794

Statement of cash flows
As at 31 December 2017
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1 Basis of preparation

These	financial	statements	have	been	prepared	
in	accordance	with	applicable	United	Kingdom	
accounting	standards,	specifically	Financial	Reporting	
Standard	102	–	‘The	Financial	Reporting	Standard	
applicable	in	the	United	Kingdom	and	Republic	of	
Ireland’	(‘FRS	102’),	and	with	the	Companies	Act	2006.	
In	accordance	with	FRS	102	the	Authority	is	deemed	
to	be	a	Public	Benefit	Entity.	The	financial	statements	
have	been	prepared	on	the	historical	cost	basis.

The	financial	statements	are	presented	in	
Sterling	(£).

2 Principal accounting policies

Operating revenue

Operating	revenue	is	recognised	to	the	extent	that	
it	is	probable	that	the	economic	benefits	will	flow	
to	the	Authority	and	the	revenue	can	be	reliably	
measured.	Operating	revenue	is	measured	as	the	fair	
value	of	the	consideration	received	or	receivable,	
excluding	discounts,	rebates,	value	added	tax	and	
other	sales	taxes.	The	following	criteria	must	also	be	
met	before	revenue	is	recognised:

Operating	revenue	from	a	contract	to	provide	
services	is	recognised	in	the	period	in	which	the	
services	are	provided	when	all	of	the	following	
conditions	are	satisfied:

-	 the	amount	of	revenue	can	be	measured	
reliably;	and

-	 it	is	probable	that	the	Authority	will	receive	the	
consideration	due	under	the	contract.

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2017

Property, plant and equipment

Property,	plant	and	equipment	is	measured	at	cost	less	accumulated	
depreciation	and	any	accumulated	impairment	losses.

Depreciation	is	calculated	to	write	down	the	cost	less	estimated	residual	value	
of	all	property,	plant	and	equipment,	other	than	freehold	land,	over	their	
expected	useful	lives,	using	the	straight-line	method.	The	rates	applicable	are:

The	original	cost	of	dredging	shipping	channels	is	capitalised.	Costs	incurred	
in	maintaining	the	channels	-	“maintenance	dredging”	-	are	charged	to	
revenue	in	the	year	in	which	they	are	incurred.

Inventories

Inventories,	which	consists	of	spare	parts	and	consumable	items,	are	valued	
at	the	lower	of	cost	and	net	realisable	value	after	making	due	allowance	for	
obsolete	and	slow-moving	items.	Cost	is	based	on	the	cost	of	purchase	on	a	
first	in,	first	out	basis.

Leases

Leases	in	which	a	significant	part	of	the	risks	and	rewards	of	ownership	are	
retained	by	the	lessor	are	classified	as	operating	leases.	Payments	made	
under	operating	leases	are	charged	to	the	income	statement	on	a	straight	line	
basis	over	the	period	of	the	lease.

Freehold	buildings 25 years

Leasehold	property over	the	remaining	period	of	the	lease

Capital	dredging 50 years

Jetties 25	and	10	years

Launches,	navigation	and	 
other equipment

3 to 20 years
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Deferred taxation

Full	provision	is	made	for	deferred	tax	assets	and	
liabilities	arising	from	timing	differences	between	
the	recognition	of	gains	and	losses	in	the	financial	
statements	and	recognition	in	the	tax	computation.	
No	provision	is	made	for	deferred	taxation	on	capital	
dredging	fixed	assets	under	FRS	102	as	no	balancing	
charge	would	arise	on	disposal	under	UK	tax	law.

A	net	deferred	tax	asset	is	recognised	only	if	it	can	
be	regarded	as	more	likely	than	not	that	there	will	be	
suitable	taxable	profits	from	which	the	future	reversal	
of	the	underlying	timing	differences	can	be	deducted.

Deferred	tax	assets	and	liabilities,	which	are	
undiscounted,	are	calculated	at	the	tax	rates	
expected	to	be	effective	at	the	time	the	timing	
differences	are	expected	to	reverse.

Research and development

Research	expenditure	is	written	off	to	the	income	
statement	in	the	year	in	which	it	is	incurred.

Capital grants received

Capital	grants	received	are	released	to	the	income	
statement	when	the	performance	related	criteria	
have	been	satisfied.

Revenue grants received

Revenue	grants	received	are	released	to	the	income	
statement	in	the	period	that	the	corresponding	
expenditure	is	incurred	and	recognised.

Surcharges

The	Authority	makes	a	surcharge	on	certain	
users	of	the	Haven	to	cover	the	costs	of	capital	
dredging	exercises.	The	money	raised	is	held	in	a	
dedicated	holding	account	and	applied	to	service	
costs	associated	with	past	exercises	including	loan	
repayments,	loan	guarantee	costs	and	environmental	
protection	costs.	Any	surplus	is	set	aside	for	future	

capital	dredging	of	the	harbour	approaches	which	the	Authority	could	make	
available	as	a	contribution	subject	to	a	satisfactory	business	case	being	submitted	
and	approved.

Interest income

Interest	income	is	recognised	as	interest	accrues	using	the	effective	interest	method.

Debtors

Debtors	are	measured	at	transition	price,	and	are	measured	subsequently	at	
amortised	cost	using	the	effective	interest	method,	less	any	impairment.

Short term investments

Short	term	investments	consist	of	deposits	with	financial	institutions	which	are	
considered	readily	convertible	in	to	cash.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash	is	represented	by	cash	in	hand	and	deposits	with	financial	institutions	
repayable	without	penalty	on	notice	of	not	more	than	24	hours.	Cash	
equivalents	are	highly	liquid	investments	that	mature	in	no	more	than	three	
months	from	the	date	of	acquisition	and	that	are	readily	convertible	to	known	
amounts	of	cash	with	insignificant	risk	of	change	in	value.

In	the	statement	of	cash	flows,	cash	and	cash	equivalents	are	shown	net	of	
bank	overdrafts	that	are	repayable	on	demand	and	from	an	integral	part	of	the	
Authority’s	cash	management.

Financial instruments

The	Authority	only	enters	into	basic	financial	transactions	that	result	in	the	
recognition	of	financial	assets	and	liabilities	like	trade	and	other	debtors	 
and	creditors.

Debt	instruments	that	are	payable	or	receivable	within	one	year,	typically	trade	
creditors	or	trade	debtors,	are	measured,	initially	and	subsequently,	at	the	
undiscounted	amount	of	the	cash	or	other	consideration,	expected	to	be	paid	
or	received.	However	if	the	arrangements	of	a	short-term	instrument	constitute	
a	financing	transaction,	like	the	payment	of	a	trade	debt	deferred	beyond	
normal	business	terms	or	financed	at	a	rate	of	interest	that	is	not	market	
rate	or	in	case	of	an	outright	short-term	loan	not	at	market	rate,	the	financial	
asset	or	liability	is	measured,	initially,	at	the	present	value	of	the	future	cash	
flow	discounted	at	a	market	rate	of	interest	for	a	similar	debt	instrument	and	
subsequently	at	amortised	cost.
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Financial	assets	that	are	measured	at	cost	and	
amortised	cost	are	assessed	at	the	end	of	each	
reporting	period	for	objective	evidence	of	
impairment.	If	objective	evidence	of	impairment	
is	found,	an	impairment	loss	is	recognised	in	the	
income	statement.

For	financial	assets	measured	at	amortised	cost,	
the	impairment	loss	is	measured	as	the	difference	
between	as	asset’s	carrying	amount	and	the	
present	value	of	estimated	cash	flows	discounted	
at	the	asset’s	original	effective	interest	rate.	If	
a	financial	asset	has	a	variable	interest	rate,	the	
discount	rate	for	measuring	any	impairment	loss	
is	the	current	effective	interest	rate	determined	
under	the	contract.

Creditors

Short	term	creditors	are	measured	at	the	
transaction	price.	Other	financial	liabilities	are	
measured	initially	at	fair	value,	net	of	transaction	
costs,	and	are	measured	subsequently	at	amortised	
cost	using	the	effective	interest	method.

Foreign currency translation

Functional currency and presentation currency

The	financial	statements	are	presented	in	the	
currency of the primary economic environment in 

which	the	entity	operates	(its	functional	currency).	
For	the	purpose	of	the	financial	statements,	the	
results	and	financial	position	are	presented	in	
Sterling	(£).

Transactions and balances

Transactions	in	currencies	other	than	the	functional	
currency	are	recognised	at	the	spot	rate	on	the	
dates	of	the	transaction	or	at	an	average	rate	where	
this	rate	approximates	the	actual	rate	at	the	date	
of	the	transaction.	At	the	end	of	each	reporting	
period,	monetary	items	denominated	in	foreign	
currencies	are	retranslated	at	the	rates	prevailing	at	

that	date.	Non-monetary	items	that	are	measured	in	terms	of	historical	costs	in	
a	foreign	currency	are	not	retranslated.

Exchange	differences	are	recognised	in	the	income	statement	in	the	period	in	
which	they	arise.

Pension costs

Defined benefit pension scheme - Harwich Haven Authority  
Pension Fund

The	Authority	operates	a	defined	benefit	scheme.	The	amounts	charged	
to	operating	surplus	are	the	current	service	costs,	and	gains	and	losses	on	
settlements	and	curtailments.	They	are	included	as	part	of	staff	costs.	Past	
service	costs	are	recognised	immediately	in	the	income	statement	if	the	
benefits	have	vested.	If	the	benefits	have	not	vested,	the	costs	are	recognised	
over	the	period	until	vesting	occurs.	The	interest	cost	and	expected	return	
on	assets	are	shown	as	a	net	amount	of	other	finance	costs	or	income	in	the	
income	statement.	Actuarial	gains	and	losses,	together	with	any	associated	
movement	in	deferred	taxation	are	recognised	immediately	in	the	statement	
of	comprehensive	income.

The	scheme	is	funded	with	the	assets	of	the	scheme	which	are	held	separately	
from	the	assets	of	the	Authority,	in	a	separate	trustee	administered	fund.	
Pension	scheme	assets	are	measured	at	fair	value	and	liabilities	are	measured	
on	an	actuarial	basis	using	projected	unit	method	and	a	discount	rate	
equivalent	to	the	current	rate	of	return	on	a	high	quality	corporate	bond	of	
equivalent	currency	and	term	to	scheme	liabilities.	Full	actuarial	valuations	are	
obtained	at	least	triennially	and	are	updated	at	each	statement	of	financial	
position	date.	The	resulting	defined	benefit	asset	or	liability,	net	of	the	
related	deferred	tax,	is	presented	separately	after	other	net	assets	on	the	
face	of	the	statement	of	financial	position.

Money purchase pension plan

The	company	operates	a	money	purchase	pension	plan	for	its	employees.	A	
money	purchase	plan	is	a	pension	plan	under	which	the	company	pays	fixed	
contributions	into	a	separate	entity.	Once	the	contributions	have	been	paid	
the	company	has	no	further	payments	obligations.

The	contributions	are	recognised	as	an	expense	in	the	income	statement	
when	they	fall	due.	Amounts	not	paid	are	shown	in	accruals	as	a	liability	in	
the	statement	of	financial	position.	The	assets	of	the	plan	are	held	separately	
from	the	company	in	independently	administered	funds.
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Multi-employer defined benefit pension scheme

The	Authority	had	a	debt	certified	under	section	
75	of	the	Pensions	Act	1995	on	20	February	2014.	
This	liability	has	previously	been	recognised	in	the	
financial	statements,	and	settled	in	full.	However	
under	Rule	15(2)	additional	sums	may	be	claimed	
from	time	to	time.	These	additional	sums	are	
undefinable	and	therefore	not	provided	for	within	
these	financial	statements.

Fund accounting

Designated	funds	are	unrestricted	funds	earmarked	
by	the	Board	for	particular	purposes.

Judgements in applying accounting policies 
and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The	preparation	of	the	financial	statements	requires	
management	to	make	judgements,	estimates	and	
assumptions	that	affect	the	amounts	reported	
for	assets	and	liabilities	as	at	the	statement	of	
financial	position	date	and	the	amounts	reported	for	

revenues	and	expenses	during	the	year.	However,	the	nature	of	estimation	means	
that	actual	outcomes	could	differ	from	those	estimates.

The	following	are	the	Authority’s	key	sources	of	estimation	uncertainty:

Useful economic lives of tangible assets

The	annual	depreciation	charge	for	tangible	assets	is	sensitive	to	changes	in	
the	estimated	useful	economic	lives	and	residual	values	of	the	assets.	The	
useful	economic	lives	and	residual	values	are	re-assessed	annually.	They	are	
amended	when	necessary	to	reflect	current	estimates,	based	on	technological	
advancement,	future	investments,	economic	utilisation	and	the	physical	
condition	of	the	assets.

Defined benefit pension scheme

The	Authority	has	obligations	to	pay	pension	benefits	to	certain	employees.	
The	cost	of	these	benefits	and	the	present	value	of	the	obligation	depend	
on	a	number	of	factors,	including;	life	expectancy,	salary	increases,	asset	
valuations	and	the	discount	rate	on	corporate	bonds.	Management	instruct	
a	qualified	actuary	to	estimate	these	factors	and	determine	the	net	pension	
obligation	at	the	statement	of	financial	position	date.	The	assumptions	reflect	
historical	experience	and	current	trends.

3 Operating revenue

     2017   2016
     £   £ 

Dues on ships    18,815,784	 	 17,164,698

Pilotage	services	 	 	 	 6,019,244  5,818,452

Pilotage	exemption	certificates	 	 	 13,969  15,180

Boarding	and	landing	charges	 	 	 1,161,084	 	 977,438

Other	operating	activities	 	 	 	 569,697	 	 538,377

     26,579,778  24,514,145

All	operating	revenue	arose	within	the	United	Kingdom.
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4 Expenditure

       As restated
     2017   2016
     £   £ 

Harbour	operating	expenditure	 	 	 11,580,508  10,404,532

Pilotage	service	costs	 	 	 	 7,194,986	 	 £7,195,527

     18,775,494	 	 17,600,059

During	the	year	management	updated	the	method	for	allocating	costs	between	Harbour	operating	expenditure	and	Pilotage	service	costs.	
These	financial	statements	reflect	this	revised	allocation	and	the	comparatives	have	been	updated	to	ensure	the	results	are	on	a	consistent	
basis.	There	is	no	change	to	total	expenditure	or	surplus	following	this	change	in	allocation.

5 Operating surplus

The	operating	surplus	on	ordinary	activities 
is	stated	after	charging	the	following:-

     2017   2016
     £   £

Depreciation    2,152,975	 	 2,087,988

Auditors’	remuneration	 	-	in	respect	of	audit	services	 20,000  19,600

   - in respect of taxation services 3,100  3,000

	 	 	-	in	respect	of	other	services	provided	 3,700  8,150

(Profit)/loss	on	sale	of	fixed	assets	 	 83,201 	 (10,277	)

Operating	lease	rentals	 	 	 	 237,774  340,188

Research	and	development	expenditure		 123,106	 	 185,477

Contributions	to	a	defined	benefit	pension	scheme	were	made	on	behalf	of	one	(2016:	one)	Board	member.
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6 Board members and employees

  2017   2016
  £  £

Wages	and	salaries	 6,004,779  5,642,030

Social	security	costs	 674,807  661,186

other pension costs 1,865,211	 	 1,789,052

  8,544,797  8,092,268

Average	number	of	employees	excluding	non-executive	members	of	the	Board	 106  110

Pension	contributions	paid	are	detailed	in	note	19.

Board members’ remuneration

  2017   2016
  £   £

Emoluments	 399,927  398,223

7 Finance income

  2017   2016
  £   £

interest from short term investments 34,859	 	 37,124

  34,859 	 37,124	

8 Finance costs

  2017   2016
  £   £

Loan interest 471,270	 	 731,377

guarantee fee 106,230  140,040

  577,500	 	 871,417

The	aggregate	emoluments	of	the	highest	paid	Board	member	-	the	Authority’s	CEO	-	totalled	£155,218	(2016:	£153,695).	At	31	
December	2017	the	highest	paid	Board	member	had	accrued	benefits	under	the	Authority’s	defined	benefit	scheme	of	£51,670	
(2016:	£47,720),	being	retirement	benefits.

During	the	year	retirement	benefits	were	accruing	to	1	Board	members	(2016	-	1)	in	respect	of	defined	benefit	pensions	schemes.
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9 Other finance costs

  2017  2016
  £   £

Defined	benefit	pension	scheme	interest	expense	 342,000 	 170,000

  342,000 	 170,000

10 Taxation

  2017  2016
  £   £

Current tax charge -  -

Deferred tax 70,689  -

Charged/(credited) to income statement 70,689  -

Factors affecting the tax charge for the year

Surplus	on	ordinary	activities	before	taxation	 6,919,643	 	 5,909,793

Surplus	on	ordinary	activities	before	taxation	multiplied	by	the	 1,331,794  1,181,959

standard	rate	of	UK	Corporation	Tax	of	19.25%	(2016:	20.0%)

Effects	of:

Deferred	tax	not	recognised	

Actuarial	losses	on	pension	scheme	 (67,363 )	 (203,600	)

Pension	cost	relief	in	excess	of	pension	cost	charge	 (728,280 )	 (756,790	)

Origination	and	reversal	of	timing	differences	 (62,709 )	 (89,218	)

Losses	brought	forward	 (473,442 )	 (132,351	)

Accelerated	capital	allowances	 70,689  -

  (1,261,105 )	 (1,181,959	)

Current tax 70,689  -
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11 Property, plant and equipment

  Freehold  Long  Capital  Jetties  Launches,  Total
  land and  leasehold  dredging    navigation
  buildings  property      & other
          equipment

Cost £  £  £  £  £  £
At	1	January	2017	 1,886,261	 	 	2,083,839		 68,556,725			 2,382,759			 11,051,567			 85,961,151

Additions	 46,206			 54,722		 -			 48,567	 		 661,687	 		 811,182

Disposals	 (28,395	)	 (4,529	)	 -	 	 (143,982	)	 (165,522	)	 (342,428	)

At	31	December	2017	 1,904,072   2,134,032  68,556,725   2,287,344   11,547,732   86,429,905

Depreciation

At	1	January	2017	 1,451,888			 667,241		 30,132,659			 1,663,915	 	 	7,316,727	 		 41,232,430

Charge	 46,621			 37,752		 1,135,468			 40,219	 		 892,915			 2,152,975

Eliminated	on	disposal	 (19,437	)	 (1,280	)	 -	 	 (84,238	)	 (144,272	)	 (249,227	)

At	31	December	2017	 1,479,072  703,713  31,268,127   1,619,896   8,065,370   43,136,178

Net book values

At	31	December	2017	 425,000   1,430,319  37,288,598   667,448   3,482,362   43,293,727

At	31	December	2016	 434,373	 	 	1,416,598		 38,424,066			 718,844			 3,734,840			 44,728,721

Included	within	the	disposals	are	£193,927	of	fully	depreciated	assets	that	on	detailed	examination	of	the	Fixed	Asset	Register	were	
found	to	have	either	been	superseded	or	redundant.

Included	within	the	disposals	are	£131,506	of	assets	with	a	net	book	value	of	£80,455	that	on	a	detailed	examination	of	the	Fixed	Asset	
Register	were	found	to	have	either	been	superseded	or	redundant.

12 Inventories              

          2017  2016

          £  £

Consumable	stores	 	 	 		 	 	 	 	 149,629	 	 175,115

Inventories	recognised	as	an	expense	during	the	year	was	£546,411	(2016:	£512,671).
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13 Debtors

  2017   2016
  £  £
Due after more than one year   

Deferred	tax	asset	(note	18)	 2,109,311 	 2,317,000

Due within one year   

Trade	debtors	 2,292,101  2,202,898

Other	debtors	 1,337  166,683

VAt 121,190  262,894

Prepayments	and	accrued	income	 289,237 	 296,874

  4,813,176  5,246,349

14 Cash at bank and in hand

Included	in	cash	at	bank	and	in	hand	is	the	sum	of	£1,500,655	(2016:	£1,499,803)	which	constitutes	the	secured	surcharge	revenue	
account,	restricted	as	to	its	use	under	the	terms	of	a	loan.

15 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
  2017   2016
  £  £ 

Trade	creditors	 320,776  199,519
corporation tax -  -
Accruals,	deferred	income	and	other	creditors 1,498,952  581,516
Loan	(note	16)	 2,354,720  2,193,724

  4,174,448 	 2,974,759

16 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Secured	loans	 4,882,251 	 7,075,975

Less:	amounts	due	within	one	year	(note	15)	 (2,354,720 ) (2,193,724	)

  2,527,531  4,882,251

  2017   2016
Amounts	repayable	by	instalments £  £ 

In	one	year	or	less	 2,354,720	 	 2,193,724

in one to two years 2,527,531	 	 2,354,720

In	two	to	five	years	 -	 	 2,527,531

  4,882,251	 	 7,075,975

In	five	years	or	more -  -

  4,882,251	 	 7,075,975	
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17 Financial Instruments

  2017   2016
  £  £ 

Financial	assets	at	amortised	cost	 15,925,471 	 8,735,692

Financial	liabilities	at	amortised	cost	 (6,701,979 )	 (7,857,010	)

  9,223,492	 	 878,682

Financial	assets	measured	at	amortised	cost	comprise	cash	at	bank	and	in	hand,	short	term	investments	and	debtors	due	within	one	
year,	excluding	prepayments	and	VAT	receivable.

Financial	liabilities	measured	at	amortised	cost	comprise	creditors	due	within	one	year	and	after	one	year.

18 Deferred Taxation

The	movement	in	deferred	taxation	during	the	year	is	as	follows:-

    £ 

At	1	January	2017	 	 	 (2,317,000	)

Movement in provision    -

Deferred	tax	asset	in	relation	to	pension	liability	recognised	in	year:		 	 	 -

Income	statement		 	 	 70,689

Statement	of	total	comprehensive	income		 	 	 137,000

At 31 December 2017    (2,109,311 )

The	loan	total	shown	above	includes	£4,882,251	(2016:	£7,075,975)	bearing	interest	at	7.209%	per	annum	repayable	over	a	twenty	
year	period	commencing	3	June	2000.	This	loan	is	secured	by	a	first	fixed	charge	on	present	and	future	surcharge	revenues.	The	
surcharge	revenues	held	in	the	designated	bank	account	can	only	be	used	for	certain	purposes,	the	principal	ones	being	the	
repayment	of	the	capital	and	interest	on	the	loan.	At	31	December	2017,	the	surcharge	revenues	set	aside	for	this	purpose,	in	
cash,	amounted	to	£1,499,828	(2016:	£1,499,803).	The	obligations	of	the	Authority	under	the	terms	of	the	loan	are	guaranteed	by	
Hutchison	Ports	(Jersey)	Property	Management	Limited.
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Deferred	taxation	provided	in	the	financial	statements	and	the	potential	amounts	including	the	amounts	for	which	provision	has	
been	made	are	as	follows:-

	 	 Provision	 Potential
  2017  2016  2017  2016
  £  £  £  £

Accelerated	capital	allowances	 221,939   252,302  221,939   252,302

Available	tax	losses		 (151,250 )		 (252,302	)		 (151,250 ) 		 (570,539	)

Pilots	National	Pension	Fund	accrual		 -   -    		 (643,271	)

Net asset  70,689   -   70,689 		 (961,508	)

Deferred	tax	asset	on	pension	liability	deducted	from	pension	liability	 (2,180,000 )		 (2,317,000	)		 (2,180,000 )		 (2,317,000	)	

Total	provision	for	deferred	tax		 (2,109,311 )		 (2,317,000	)			 (2,109,311 )	 (3,278,508	)

No	provision	is	made	for	deferred	taxation	on	capital	dredging	fixed	assets	under	FRS	102	as	no	balancing	charge	would	arise	on	
disposal	under	UK	tax	law.

19 Pension scheme

Defined benefit scheme

For	some	employees,	the	Authority	operates	a	funded	pension	plan	providing	benefits	for	its	employees	based	on	final	pensionable	
pay.	The	assets	of	the	Fund	are	held	in	a	separate	trustee	administered	fund.

The	funding	plan	is	for	the	Fund	to	hold	assets	equal	to	the	value	of	the	benefits	earned	by	employees,	based	on	a	set	of	
assumptions	used	for	funding	the	Fund.	The	funding	assumptions	differ	from	the	assumptions	used	to	calculate	the	figures	for	these	
accounts,	and	therefore	produce	different	results.	If	there	is	a	shortfall	against	this	funding	plan,	then	the	Authority	and	Trustees	
agree	on	deficit	contributions	to	meet	this	deficit	over	a	period.	The	Authority	has	agreed	to	pay	contributions	in	respect	of	ongoing	
accrual	of	members’	benefits,	in	addition	to	contributions	in	respect	of	the	deficit	in	funding.	As	part	of	the	actuarial	valuation	with	
an	effective	date	of	31	December	2014	the	following	contributions	from	the	Authority	were	agreed:

-	16.725%	pa	of	pensionable	salaries	in	respect	of	ongoing	benefit	accrual;	and
-	£1.11m	pa	in	respect	of	the	deficit	funding.

The	results	of	the	formal	actuarial	valuation	as	at	31	December	2014	were	updated	to	the	accounting	date	by	an	independent	
qualified	actuary	in	accordance	with	FRS	102,	allowing	for	benefit	payments	made,	and	changes	in	market	conditions.	The	results,	
based	on	assumptions	used	for	FRS	102,	are	as	follows:

Statement of financial position  2017  2016
  £000  £000

Present	value	of	defined	benefit	obligation	 (71,144	) (69,971	)
Fair	value	of	Fund	assets		 58,323  56,344 

Deficit	reflected	in	provisions	for	liabilities	and	charges		 (12,821 )		 (13,627	)
Related	deferred	tax	asset	reflected	in	debtors		 2,180 		 2,317

Net	liability	recognised	in	the	statement	of	financial	position		 (10,641 )	 (11,310	)
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Movement in net defined benefit liability  2017  2016
  £000  £000

Opening	net	defined	benefit	liability	 13,627 	 5,678
Expense	recognised	in	the	surplus	before	comprehensive	income	 1,362  918
Employer	contributions	 (1,712	)	 (1,936	)
Amount	recognised	in	other	comprehensive	income	 (456	)	 8,967

Closing	net	defined	benefit	liability	 12,821	 	 13,627

Expense recognised in statement of total comprehensive income  2017  2016
  £000  £000

Employer’s	part	of	current	service	cost	 1,020 	 721
Past	service	cost	and	settlements	 -  8
Running	costs	 -  19
interest expense 342	 	 170

Total	expense	recognised	in	statement	of	total	comprehensive	income	 1,362  918

Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation  2017  2016
  £000  £000

Opening	defined	benefit	obligation	 69,971  53,864 
Employer’s	part	of	current	service	cost		 1,020 	 721	
Past	service	cost	and	settlements		 -   8
Interest	on	obligation		 1,796   2,026
Contributions	from	Fund	members	 159 		 172
Actuarial	losses/(gains)	 (17	) 15,016
Benefits	paid	 (1,785	) 	 (1,836	)

Closing	defined	benefit	obligation	  71,144	 	 69,971

Movement in fair value of plan assets  2017  2016
  £000  £000

Opening	fair	value	of	the	Fund	assets	 56,344  48,186
Interest	on	Fund	assets	 1,454  1,856
Actual	return	less	interest	on	Fund	assets	 439  6,049
contributions by the Authority 1,712  1,936
Contributions	by	Fund	members	 159	 	 172
Running	costs	 -  	 (19	)
Benefits	paid	 (1,785	) 	 (1,836	)

Closing	fair	value	of	Fund	assets	 58,323   56,344

The	total	return	on	the	assets	over	the	year	was	£1,893,000.
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The	major	categories	of	plan	assets	at	the	balance	sheet	date	are	as	follows:

    2017  2016
    £000  £000

Bonds		 	 	 9.4%	 	 9.3%
Gilts		 	 	 20.9%	 	 20.4%
Total	return	fund		 	 	 69.1%	 	 69.8%
cash    0.6%		 0.5%

    100.0%	 	 100.0%

The	Fund	does	not	invest	directly	in	property	occupied	by	the	Authority	or	in	financial	securities	issued	by	the	Authority.

The	following	table	sets	out	the	significant	assumptions	used	for	the	Fund:

Actuarial Assumptions  2017   2016   2015

Retail	Prices	Index	inflation		 3.2% p.a 	 	 3.2%	p.a			 3.0%	p.a
Consumer	Prices	Index	inflation	 2.2% p.a	 	 2.2%	p.a	 	 2.0%	p.a
Discount rate 2.4% p.a	 	 2.6%	p.a	 	 3.8%	p.a
Pension	increases	in	payment	(5%	LPI)	 3.1% p.a 	 3.1%	p.a	 	 2.9%	p.a
Pension	increases	in	payment	(2.5%	LPI)	 2.1% p.a 	 2.1%	p.a	 	 2.0%	p.a
Salary	increases	 3.7% p.a 	 3.7%	p.a	 	 3.5%	p.a
Life	expectancy	of	male/female	aged	65	at	balance	sheet	date	 24.3 years 	 24.8	years	 	 24.7	years
Life	expectancy	of	male/female	aged	65	in	20	years’	time	 26.1 years 	 27.1	years	 	 27.0	years

20 Capital commitments

At	the	year	end	the	Board	had	contracted	to	further	capital	expenditure	which	is	not	provided	in	these	financial	statements	of	
£324,650	(2016:	£200,220).

21 Operating lease commitments

At	31	December	2017	the	Authority	had	future	minimum	lease	payments	under	non-cancellable	operating	leases	as	follows:

    2017  2016
    £  £
Expiry	date:
Within	1	year	 	 	 257,100	 	 257,100
Between 2 to 5 years   1,028,400  1,028,400
After more than 5 years   11,408,710  11,665,810

    12,694,210  12,951,310

Included	within	the	commitment	is	£11,708,550	(2016:	£11,947,500)	relating	to	the	lease	for	the	Managed	Retreat	in	Trimley	which	
expires	in	2067.
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22 Contingent liabilities

The	Pilots	National	Pension	Fund	is	a	UK	defined	benefit	pension	scheme	for	marine	pilots.	It	includes	self-employed	as	well	as	
employed	members,	and	is	funded	by	multiple	employers,	including	harbour	authorities	that	only	authorised	self-employed	pilots	
and	had	never	previously	been	required	to	contribute	to	the	scheme.

The	Authority	had	its	debt	certified	under	section	75	of	the	Pensions	Act	1995	on	20	February	2014	and	this	has	been	recognised	in	
the	financial	statements	for	the	year	ended	31	December	2013.	However	under	Rule	15(2)	additional	sums	may	be	claimed	from	time	
to	time.	These	additional	sums	are	undefinable	and	therefore	not	provided	for	within	these	financial	statements.

23 Related party transactions

Key management personnel

The	Board	and	Management	team	as	listed	on	the	members,	management	and	advisors	page	are	considered	to	have	authority	
and	responsibility	for	planning,	directing	and	controlling	the	activities	of	the	Authority	and	are	therefore	considered	to	be	key	
management	personnel.	Total	remuneration	in	respect	of	these	individuals	is	£767,901	(Restated	2016:	£825,528).	
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24 Reserves

       Designated
 Brought      Expenditure    Gains/  Total  Carried
 forward  Income  Expenditure  Transfers  Transfers  (losses)  movement  forward
 £  £  £  £  £  £  £  £

Designated
Capital	expenditure	 2,013,300	 	 -	 	 -	 	 (811,182	)	 1,016,882	 	 -	 	 205,700	 	 2,219,000
Pension	contributions		 1,100,000	 	 -	 	 -	 	 (1,232,493	)	 1,242,493	 	 -	 	 10,000	 	 1,110,000
Capital	dredging	 1,211,043	 	 -	 	 -	 	 -	 	 900,820	 	 -	 	 900,820	 	 2,111,863
Loan	repayments	 2,193,724	 	 -	 	 -	 	 (2,193,724	)	 2,354,720	 	 -	 	 160,996	 	 2,354,720

 6,518,067  -  -  (4,237,399 ) 5,514,915  -  1,277,516  7,795,583

Revenue
General		 4,655,156			 26,614,637			 (18,680,689	)		 4,237,399	 	 (7,708,639	)	 (137,000	)	 4,325,708			 8,980,864
Pension	scheme		 (13,627,000	)	 -	 	 350,000			 -	 	 -			 456,000	 		 806,000			 (12,821,000	)

 (8,971,844 )  26,614,637   (18,330,689 )  4,237,399  (7,708,639 )  319,000   5,131,708   (3,840,136 )

Fixed assets and loans
Fixed	assets		 44,728,721			 -			 (1,434,994	)	 -	 	 -			 -			 (1,434,994	)		 43,293,727
Loans		 (7,075,975	)		 -			 -			 -	 	 2,193,724			 -			 2,193,724			 (4,882,251	)

 37,652,746   -  (1,434,994 )  -  2,193,724  -   758,730   38,411,476

Revenue, fixed
assets and loans 28,680,902   26,614,637   (19,765,683 )  4,237,399  (5,514,915 )  319,000   5,890,438   34,571,340

Total 35,198,969   26,614,637   (19,765,683 ) -  -  319,000   7,167,954   42,366,923

The	column	headed	Expenditure	is	the	net	total	of	actual	expenditure,	depreciation	and	identified	future	liabilities.

Below	are	descriptions	to	the	various	headings	above.
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Designated

Capital expenditure

Includes	amounts	designated	by	the	Authority	towards	capital	expenditure	in	future	financial	years.

Pension contributions

Includes	amounts	designated	by	the	Authority	towards	additional	contributions	to	the	Pension	Scheme	in	respect	of	the	deficit	
funding	in	the	next	financial	year.

Funds for future capital dredging

Includes	surplus	from	Conservancy	Surcharge	receipts	that	the	Authority	could	make	available	as	a	contribution	towards	future	
deepening	of	the	harbour	approaches.	Such	deepening	would	make	the	Haven	more	accessible	for	the	new	generation	of	container	
ships.	No	business	case	has	been	submitted	or	approved.

Loan repayments

Includes	amounts	designated	by	the	Authority	towards	future	loan	repayments	falling	due	in	the	next	financial	year.

Revenue

General

Includes	all	other	current	and	prior	period	surpluses	and	deficits.

Pension scheme

Includes	the	obligation	to	the	members	of	the	Harwich	Haven	Authority	Pension	Fund	(HHAPF)	prior	to	any	reductions	for	amounts	
held	within	designated	funds.

Fixed assets and loans

Fixed assets

Includes	current	and	prior	period	income	and	expenditure	relating	to	fixed	assets	held	by	the	Authority.

Loans

Includes	current	and	prior	period	advances,	repayments	and	interest	relating	to	loans	held	by	the	Authority	prior	to	any	reductions	
for	amounts	held	within	designated	funds.

25 Analysis of net assets between funds

          Fixed  Total funds  Total funds
     Designated  Revenue  assets  2017  2016
     £  £  £  £  £

Fixed	assets	 	 	 	 	 -	 	 -	 	 43,293,727			 43,293,727			 44,728,721
Current	Assets	 	 	 	 	 7,795,583			 10,800,592	 	 -	 	 18,596,175			 11,954,258
Liabilities	 	 	 	 	 -	 	 (1,819,728	)	 (4,882,251	)	 (6,701,979	)	 (7,857,010	)
Pension	scheme	 	 	 	 	 	-	 	 (12,821,000	)	 -	 	 (12,821,000	)	 (13,627,000	)

Total     7,795,583  (3,840,136 ) 38,411,476  42,366,923  35,198,969
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